
RAMSEY COUNTY | 1 

RAMSEY COUNTY CHARTER COMMISSION AGENDA 
Monday, October 21, 2024 6 p.m. – 8 p.m. 

Maplewood Library – Community Room 
3025 Southlawn Drive Maplewood, Minnesota 55109 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Approval of October 21, 2024 Agenda

4. Approval of August 5, 2024 Minutes

5. New Business

a. Welcome and Introduction

b. Presentation: 2025 Recommended Supplemental Budget by Ramsey County
Manager
Ling Becker, Ramsey County Manager
Susan Earle, Ramsey County Chief Financial Officer

c. Motion to Declare Vacancies
o District 1 – Ann Maslansky – Takahashi
o District 2 – John Niedfeldt-Thomas
o District 3 – Prince Corbett
o District 4 – Bethany Winkels
o District 5 – Gloria Bogen
o District 6 – Hoang Murphy
o District 7 – William Kempe
o At – Large – Angela Thies

d. Proposed Meeting Dates and Times for 2025 beginning at 6pm
o Workshop: Training and Orientation for Charter Commission Members

January 13 or 27

o Quarter 1 Meeting: February 3, 2025
o Quarter 2 Meeting: May 5, 2025
o Quarter 3 Meeting: August 4, 2025
o Quarter 4 Meeting: October 20, 2025



RAMSEY COUNTY | 2 

6. Committee Reports
a. Chair Reports – Chair Haas

o Annual Workplan Update

b. Budget Committee Reports – Chair Matthew Emerson
o Review of Charter Commission Budget Letter

c. Charter Review Committee Report – Co-Chair Matthew Emerson and Gene 
Nichols

d. Nomination Committee Report – Chair Gene Nichols
o Election of Chair for 2025
o Election of Vice-Chair for 2025

7. Citizen’s Input (7:30 p.m.)

8. Celebration of Accomplishment

9. Adjournment

10.  Future Agenda Items

11.  Attachments:

• August 5, 2024 Minutes
• 2025 Recommended Supplemental Budget Presentation
• Proposed Charter Commission Budget Letter
• Annual Workplan Template
• January On-boarding Workshop Materials



 

Submitted by: Jason Yang, Planner, County Managers Office  RAMSEY COUNTY | 1 
 
 

RAMSEY COUNTY CHARTER COMMISSION MINUTES 
 

Monday August 5, 2024 6 p.m. – 8 p.m. 
Rondo Community Library - 461 Dale St. N., St. Paul, MN 55103 

Flex Room (1st Floor) 
 

1. Call to Order: Chair Nancy Haas called the meeting to order at [ 6:05p ]. 
 

2. Roll Call Attendance: Completed by Jason Yang 
 

District Charter Commission Member Present Excused Unexcused 
1 Ann Maslansky-Takahashi ☒ ☐ ☐ 
1 Eugene (Gene) Nichols  ☒ ☐ ☐ 
2 Lisa M. Laliberte – Vice Chair ☐ ☒ ☐ 
2 John Niedfeldt-Thomas ☒ ☐ ☐ 
3 Nancy Haas - Chair ☒ ☐ ☐ 
3 Prince Corbett  ☒ ☐ ☐ 
4 Bethany Winkels ☒ ☐ ☐ 
4 William (Bill) Lindeke ☒ ☐ ☐ 
5 Jazmin Glaser-Kelly ☐ ☒ ☐ 
5 Gloria Bogen ☒ ☐ ☐ 
6 Hoang Murphy  ☐ ☒ ☐ 
6 Matthew Emerson ☒ ☐ ☐ 
7 Jo Emerson ☐ ☒ ☐ 
7 William (Bill) Kempe ☐ ☒ ☐ 

At Large Angela (Angie) Thies  ☐ ☒ ☐ 
At Large Jonathan (Jon) Schumacher ☐ ☒ ☐ 
At Large Allen Hoppe  ☒ ☐ ☐ 

Note: A quorum of the Commission members shall consist of a majority of the number of appointed and sworn 
members, as of August 2024 quorum is 9 members. 
 
Guests:   Jennifer O’Rourke, Director, Government Relations 
 Ami Wazlawik, Government Relations Specialist, Government Relations 
 Jolie Wood, Government Relations Specialist, Government Relations 

 
Also Present: Stacey D’Andrea, Assistant County Attorney, Ramsey County Attorney’s  
 Office 

 Jason Yang, Planner, Ramsey County Manager’s Office 
 

3. Approval of August 5, 2024 Agenda: Motioned by John Niedfeldt-Thomas, and seconded 
by Mathew Emerson. Unanimously approved by all members present. 

 
  



 

Submitted by: Jason Yang, Planner, County Managers Office  RAMSEY COUNTY | 2 
 
 

4. Approval of the May 6, 2024 Minutes: Motioned by John Niedfeldt-Thomas, and 
seconded by Mathew Emerson. Unanimously approved by all members present. 
 

5. New Business 
a. Welcome and Introductions 

 
b. Presentation: 2024 Ramsey County Legislative Session 

i. Co-presented by Jennifer O’Rourke, Director, and Ami Wazlawik, 
Government Relations Specialist, Ramsey County Government Relations 
Department 

ii. Provided an overview of the 2024 Legislative Session, including state 
bonds for the Parks at RiversEdge and the Rice Creek Commons in Arden 
Hills.  

1. 2024 Legislative priorities can be found at  
wwww.ramseycounty.us/legislativeplatforms  

iii. Commission members discussion included:  
1. Anaerobic digester, Union Depot insurance and liability, additional 

projects related to public transport and railroads,  
iv. Concerns include: 

1. Safety issues for roundabout areas in the TCAAP/Arden Hills area 
(ie. flooding, crosswalks, signage) 

 
c. Onboarding Materials Discussion 

i. Co-presented by Stacey D’Andrea, Assistant County Attorney, Ramsey 
County Attorney’s Office and Jason Yang, Planner, County Managers 
Office 

ii. Reviewed and discussed roles and responsibilities 
1. Opportunity: Can out going chair review roles and responsibilities 

and provide feedback/suggestions to role and responsibilities? 
iii. Update Red Binder with updated onboarding materials (ie. roles and 

responsibilities) 
 

6. Citizen Input (7:30 p.m.) 
a. None for input.  

 
7. Committee Reports 

a. Chair Reports – Chair Nancy Haas 
i. No reports.  
 

  



 

Submitted by: Jason Yang, Planner, County Managers Office  RAMSEY COUNTY | 3 
 
 

b. Budget Committee Report – Chair Matthew Emerson  
i. Members: Angie, Bethany, Ann 
ii. No reports 

 
c. Charter Review Committee Report – Co-Chairs Matthew Emerson and Eugene 

Nichols 
i. Members: Bethany, Gloria 
ii. Reviewed the Home Rule Charter, but there are no recommendations.  
iii. Action Items:  

1. Review the state statute regarding city charters 
2. Compare city charters and other chartered counties with Ramsey 

County’s Home Rule Charter 
  

d. Nomination Committee Report – Chair Eugene Nichols 
i. Members: Ann,  
ii. What is the role and responsibility of the members? 

1. Ann – spoke with members to see who would be interested in the 
Chair and Vice Chair role (V – John Niedfeldt-Thomas, VC – Gloria 
Bogen) 

 
8. Meeting Dates and Tentative Location for 2024 

a. October 21, 2024 – Roseville Library, Community Program Room  
 

9. Future Agenda Item 
a. Recycling and Energy presenter 
b. Presentation on Minnesota Statute Chapter 383A  

 
10. Adjournment 

a. Chair Nancy Haas adjourned the meeting at motioned by Nancy, seconded by 
Bethany 7:45pm. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Next Meeting: Monday October 21, 2024 6 p.m. – 8 p.m. 
Location: TBD 



October 21, 2024

2025 Recommended 
Supplemental Budget by 
Ramsey County Manager
Presented to the Charter Commission



2

Emphasis on Performance 
Measurement

• Second year of the biennium traditionally 
focuses on organizational performance.

• Measures demonstrate transparency and
accountability in advancing county mission 
and strategic plan.



Intergenerational prosperity for racial and economic inclusion.

Putting well-being and community at the center of justice system 
transformation.

Advancing racial and health equity and shared community power.

Responding to climate change and increasing community 
resilience.

Residents First: effective, efficient and accessible operations.

Aligning talent attraction, retention and promotion.

Advancing a holistic approach to strengthen individuals and 
families.   

3

Strategic Priorities Vision

Mission

Countywide Goals

What Guides Performance Measurement



4

Community Indicators

• Affordability
• Wealth Creation
• Early Childhood
• Public Safety
• Health

Community indicators are available on the Open Data Portal

Measure communitywide outcomes, provide 
information about past and current trends, and 
track the overall health of our community.

https://data.ramseycounty.us/stories/s/6nwb-jvw2


5

Performance Measurement Culture

• Three-tiered approach connecting 
countywide, service team and 
department level measures.

• Continuing to build a countywide 
culture of performance measurement.

• Strategic partnership in 2024 
with the Center for Economic Inclusion.

Performance measures are available on the Open Data Portal

https://data.ramseycounty.us/stories/s/Department-Dashboards/mavw-7egh/


6

No change to proposed 
levy increase: 

2025 approved: 4.75% 
2025 proposed: 4.75%

Overall budget 
increase:

2025 approved: 3.3%
2025 proposed: 5.0%

The Budget Top Line 

• Total Ramsey County budget
2025 approved (initial):
$835,076,779
2025 proposed (revised):
$848,554,948

• Regional Rail levy set at the statutory maximum: 
 2025: $35,585,858

• Housing and Redevelopment Authority levy 
set at the statutory maximum:
 2025: $13,346,926



7

Foundational Themes 
of the 2024-2025 
Budget

People Partnerships

Service Delivery 

Investing in our employees, 
residents, and businesses 

by using performance 
measures to drive 

decisions.

Deepening partnerships 
and collaborations with 

community to share power 
and co-create through 
strategic investments.

Evolving to meet the needs and 
expectations of those we serve 

through innovative in-person, digital 
and other methods of provision.



8

Where the county dollar comes from - 2025

Total Budget - $848,554,948 



9

Where the county dollar goes - 2025

Total Budget - $848,554,948 



10

County Manager presentation of proposed supplemental budget to County Board. Aug 27

Service Team performance measurement presentations to County Board. Sept. 16-17

Public Hearing #1 (5 p.m. at Saint Paul City Hall – Ramsey County Courthouse). Sept. 17

Joint Property Tax Advisory Committee reviews county, city and school district 
maximum levies. Sept. 23

County Board certifies 2025 maximum property tax levy. Sept. 24

Notices of estimated taxes, values emailed/mailed to property owners. Nov. 10-24

Public Hearing #2 (6:30 p.m. at Hallie Q. Brown Community Center December 11

County Board approval of 2025 supplemental budget and property tax levy. Dec. 17

Key Dates in the 2025 Supplemental Budget Process



11



Proposed budget letter 
 
October 10th, 2024 
To: Ling Becker, County Manager 
CC: Mee Cheng, Chief Clerk and Director of Administration Alex Kotze, Chief Financial Officer 
Nancy Haas, Charter Commission Chair 
Stacey D’Andrea, Assistant County Attorney 
RE: Ramsey County 2025 Supplemental Budget, Charter Commission Comment 
 
Dear County Manager Becker, 
Per the Ramsey County Charter, members of the Ramsey County Charter Commission, budget sub-
committee have assembled and reviewed the Ramsey County supplemental budget and corresponding 
materials. I serve as the District 6  Representative of the Ramsey County Charter Commission and Chair 
of the Budget Committee. On behalf of the Budget Committee, we acknowledge the efforts to compile a 
thoughtful, strategic, and balanced budget, including the proposed supplemental budget 
recommendations that clearly resources the priorities of the county and aligns with existing values and 
organization structure. 
 
 
Specifically, we’d like to call attention to the areas of: 
‒ Intentionally avoiding increased demands on property taxes. 
‒ Thoughtfully and transparently dedicating the collaboration with the Center for Economic inclusion to 
the most impacted county members.  
‒ Stressing performance indicators in the supplemental budget process. 
‒ Continuing to support the outlined and approved 2024 biennial budget that includes 
Tracking disaggregated data highlighting key racial and economic disparities, improving our operating 
county programs, and increasing county efforts to individualize services and incorporating racial equity 
throughout the budget. 
 
During the biennial budget planning process, the commission was complimentary of the county’s efforts 
to engage residents and the community through the process –resulting in a thoughtful, transparent, and 
well-organized budget process. The commission would like to encourage the administration and Ramsey 
County Board to consider and adopt a similar, potentially scaled version of this process to identify and 
accommodate emergent community needs within the supplemental budget process. 
   
 Additionally, the commission would like to raise a concern regarding  
 
 
 
We thank you for the opportunity to provide and share the areas we encourage the county to continue 
monitoring. If we may be of additional service, please don’t hesitate to reach out via email at 
Matthew.e@socialservicesmn.org 
 
Sincerely, 
Matthew S. Emerson  
Budget Committee Chairman  
 

mailto:Matthew.e@socialservicesmn.org


Charter Commission Draft Proposed Workplan for 2022
January 2022 Jan. 12 (5 – 6 PM)  Charter Committee Meeting 

Review sections 1-3 

February 2022 Feb. 7 (7 – 9 PM) Charter Commission Meeting 
Committee reports 
Focus issue needed 

March 2022 

April 2022 Apr. 13 (5 – 6 PM) Charter Committee Meeting 
Review sections 

May 2022 May 2 (7 – 9 PM) Charter Commission Meeting 
Committee reports 
Focus issue needed 

June 2022 

July 2022 TBD Budget Committee Meeting 

Jul. 13 (5 – 6 PM) Charter Committee Meeting 
Review sections 

August 2022 TBD Budget Committee Meeting 

Aug. 1 (7 – 9 PM) Charter Commission Meeting 
Committee reports 
Focus issues needed 

September 2022 TBD Budget Committee Meeting 

Sep. 14 (5 – 6 PM) Charter Committee Meeting 

October 2022 Oct. 17 (7 – 9 PM) Charter Commission Meeting 
Committee reports 
County Manager Budget Presentation 

November 2022 TBD Budget Committee Meeting 



RAMSEY COUNTY | 1 

HOME RULE CHARTER OVERVIEW 

Introduction 
The Ramsey County Home Rule Charter was presented to the citizens of Ramsey County and on 
November 6, 1990, Ramsey County voters adopted Minnesota’s first county home rule charter.  
Following a two-year enactment period, the Ramsey County Home Rule Charter became effective 
November 6, 1992.   

Constitutional Authority 
In 1974, Minnesota’s Constitution was restructured and amended, and language regarding home rule 
charters was moved to Article XII, section four.  This section now allows any local governmental unit, 
when authorized by state law, to adopt a Home Rule Charter. 

Adoption of a home rule charter is a complex process that involves the state legislature, a charter 
commission, local government officials, legal counsel, and the county electorate.  Enabling legislation is 
the first step toward giving a county authority to create a home rule charter.   

Ramsey County Enabling Legislation 
In May 1987, the Minnesota Legislature approved Chapter 103 of the Laws of Minnesota 1987.  
(Minnesota Statutes Chapter 383A.551, Ramsey County; Charter Commission; 383A.552, Charter 
Commission; Nominations and Appointments; 383A.553, Charter Commission; Terms; Chair; Expenses 
and Administration; and 383A.554, Powers and Duties).  This special law related solely to Ramsey 
County and provided for a charter commission to recommend a home rule form of county government 
and provided for its adoption. This legislation is referred to as the enabling legislation providing for a 
Ramsey County Home Rule Charter.  Ramsey County was chosen for this pilot program by the 
legislature rather than going state-wide with the idea.  Ramsey County is a fully developed county with 
very little unincorporated land and has been a pioneer in other areas as well.  The legislation was 
amended in 1989 to allow a county charter to be adopted by the same majority vote that city charters 
are adopted.  Both of these special laws were approved by the Ramsey County Board of 
Commissioners. 

This enabling legislation stated, “Within 30 days of the effective date of this act the Ramsey County 
legislative delegation shall nominate 41 persons as candidates for appointment to a charter commission 
to frame a charter to provide for the form of government for Ramsey County.”  It also stated, “Within 30 
days of the selection of nominees the judges of the second judicial district shall appoint the charter 
commission of 17 members consisting of two appointees for each county commissioner district selected 
from those nominated from each county commissioner district and three appointees from those 
nominated at large to serve at large."  Members of the first Ramsey County Charter Commission were 
to serve in a volunteer capacity and hold office until a final report had been made to the Ramsey 
County Board of Commissioners. 

Chapter 103 also states that “Before December 31, 1988, the charter commission shall deliver to the 
board of county commissioners either (1) its report determining that the present form of county 
government is adequate for the county and that a charter is not necessary or desirable, or (2) a draft of 
a proposed charter.” Also included was language stating, “The proposed charter may provide for any 
form of government consistent with the constitution of the State of Minnesota. 



 

 
RAMSEY COUNTY | 2 

 

What Is a Home Rule Charter? 
(Source: County Home Rule Comes to Minnesota by Michele Timmons, Judy Grant, Teri Popp, and Heidi 
Westby, published in the William Mitchell Law Review Volume 19, No. 4 (1993)) 
 
Home Rule is a state constitutional provision or legislative action providing city or county government 
with a greater measure of self-government.  The basic document used to carry on the function of home 
rule is the home rule charter.  The charter becomes the constitution for local government. 
 
The Charter Commission Begins Its Discussion and Review Process 
(Source: Files of Ramsey County Charter Commission meetings held in 1988 and 1989) 
 
The newly appointed 17-person Charter Commission began meeting in November 1987, to study and 
discuss the desirability of a Home Rule Charter for Ramsey County or to determine if the current form 
of government should be retained.   
 
One of the earliest meetings included dialogue about each member’s initial understanding and thoughts 
of the home rule charter form of government. Comments received from members included: 

• I have no preconceived ideas of what a Home Rule Charter would include. 
• The Board’s power has decreased over time. 
• The County is overburdened by mandates. 
• A Charter may take care of problems associated with capital improvement and infrastructure, 

but how? 
• There may be greater citizen understanding of County’s roles. 
• I have no expectations. 
• The County needs flexibility and latitude to carry out its duties. 
• There may be more effective accountability of delivery of services under a home rule form of 

government. 
 
Discussion during future meetings included the following advantages of a Home Rule Charter: 

• A charter confers broad powers on the local governmental unit. 
• The charter gives a county great flexibility to deal effectively with local needs and desires and 

provides flexibility to choose alternative approaches.  This flexibility may increase efficiency in both 
public service and resource management. 

• The charter form of government makes counties more autonomous.  State legislators do not need 
to be involved in day-to-day county operations.  County officials are not required to go to the 
legislature with some county-specific issues.  Instead, home rule allows local action at the county 
level. 

• The charter form of government may make county government more visible and responsive to the 
people. 

Discussion included the following disadvantages of a charter form of government: 
• The scope and extent of county home rule power are not always clear.  While generally home rule 

gives a county board powers to legislate on matters of purely county concern, federal, state or city 
laws may preclude regulation of certain subject matter.  As a result, resolution of each issue 
demands a case-by-case analysis. 



 

 
RAMSEY COUNTY | 3 

 

• Possible loss of uniformity among charter units. Home Rule power entitles a county to shape 
county matters as it sees fit as long as the matter involves no discernible prevailing state or city 
interest. 

• Home Rule government may allow for direct voter involvement in county government.  A potential 
concern is that a small number of voters may try to influence county law and policy. 

• It may be difficult to adopt, amend, and abandon a Home Rule Charter, as these processes take 
considerable time and effort. 

 
Approval By The Charter Commission To Draft a Charter 
(Source: Executive Summary of the Draft Home Rule Charter for Ramsey County, September 14, 1989) 
 
In August 1988, the Charter Commission voted to draft a charter for several reasons.  County 
government has often been referred to as the invisible government and viewed as an agent or arm of 
the state.  However, county government has many independent roles as well.  A home rule charter 
would provide Ramsey County with government by the people and distinguish it from state legislative 
control.  The overreaching principle of the Charter Commission was “good government”.  Commission 
members determined that a charter would: 
• Enhance the visibility of Ramsey County government; 
• Improve its responsiveness to Ramsey County citizens; and 
• Increase the flexibility of Ramsey County government to respond to the changing needs of 

Ramsey County citizens. 
 
Intent of The Members Of The Charter Commission 
(Source: Position Papers which explain the intent of the Ramsey County Charter Commission in drafting the 
Ramsey County Home Rule Charter, August 16, 1990) 
 
During 1989 and early 1990, the Charter Commission drafted a proposed home rule charter.  The 
charter was drafted “with the intent to make county government more visible and responsive to the 
residents of the county and to provide ways to make county government more flexible and efficient in 
addressing the needs of county residents.” 
 
Under the charter, the county and municipal powers and duties would continue to be defined by state 
statute.  The county would have all powers necessary or convenient to conduct the affairs of the county 
and could exercise these powers unless they were prohibited by state or federal constitutions or laws.   
 
To enhance the visibility and responsiveness of Ramsey County government, the draft charter 
proposed to give Ramsey County citizens the powers of initiative, referendum and recall.  In addition, 
more county board actions would require public hearings to allow citizen comments on issues like park 
land transfers and bonding projects.  
 
Major Areas of Discussion and Decisions 
Several areas of the proposed Charter were controversial and garnered a considerable amount of 
discussion.  Those included: 
• Professional management form of government – The majority of Commission members felt 

strongly that the County should have a professional management form of government. 
• Initiative, Referendum and Recall – To engage a greater sense of power by the people, Initiative, 

Referendum and Recall powers were discussed at great length and placed in the proposed 
charter.  Initiative is the right to propose ordinances; Referendum is the right to require ordinances 



 

 
RAMSEY COUNTY | 4 

 

to be submitted to a vote of the people; and Recall is the ability to remove an elected official from 
office.  

 
To increase the flexibility of Ramsey County government, the draft charter included the following: 
 
Municipal Powers 
Section 1.04 of the Ramsey County Home Rule Charter was drafted to protect the powers of 
municipalities.  There was no intent on the part of the Charter Commission to transfer, alter or impair 
any existing function, duty, or power of any municipality or political subdivision within the county in any 
way. 
 
Park Property 
The disposal of park and open space property was controlled by state statute.  The then Director of 
Parks and Recreation requested that the Charter specifically ban the sale, conveyance or disposal of 
park and open space land.  The majority of Charter Commission members felt differently; they believed 
there may be unforeseen circumstances in the future regarding sale, lease, conveyance or disposal of 
these lands.  Pursuant to Section 2.02 K of the Charter, the County Board has the power to sell, lease 
or otherwise dispose of park property upon such terms as it considers best in the public interest.  This 
Section allows for transfer of park property by shifting the decision-making process from the state 
legislature to the county board and requires at least two public hearings.  If the county board decides to 
proceed with the transfer, it must be done by ordinance. 
 
In 1994, the electorate approved an amendment to this section of the Charter stating that the County 
Board shall adopt, by resolution, a policy requiring no net loss of park, recreational or open space land 
and facilities before it can convert county park or open space to other uses. 
 
Professional County Management 
Section 3.01 was drafted to require the county board to have professional management.  The 
professional manager would continue to be hired or fired by a vote of four board members, but 
professional management for the county would be in place, unless amended by the Charter.   
 
Section 3.02 A authorizes the county manager to appoint, review, transfer, suspend or remove all 
appointive department heads and the county manager’s appointive staff.  This separates the board 
from the administrative duties generally delegated to an executive officer.  The board should make 
policy and the executive officer should manage the county business.  
 
Ordinance Procedures 
The Charter Commission wanted to open the decision making process to more public input.  One way 
to encourage this was to have a greater number of topics be handled by ordinance that would require 
public hearings and be subject to possible referendum. The charter also strengthened the process to be 
followed prior to adoption of an ordinance, and allows for a referendum on ordinances.  
 
Section 5.01 outlines the areas that would be subject to an ordinance, rather than a resolution.  Among 
others, these areas include: 
• Establish, structure, merge, or abolish any county department, office, agency, board or 

commission, except as provided for in this charter; 
• Establish the annual salary for county board members; 
• Authorize the bonding and borrowing of money; 
• Authorize emergency appropriations; 
• Convey or lease, or authorize the conveyance or lease of any park lands; and 



 

 
RAMSEY COUNTY | 5 

 

• Propose amendments to the Home Rule Charter. 
 
County-Wide Service Delivery and Planning Activities 
Chapter 6.00 added the responsibility for county-wide coordination of operational services and strategic 
planning to the powers and duties of the county board.  Up to this time, any planning and coordination 
of service delivery was done on an individual department basis.  The county would be required to invite 
local units of government to join with the county in discussing operational services and strategic 
planning.  Review and updating of these plans is to be done as a joint cooperative effort between the 
county and local units of government.  
 
Initiative, Referendum and Recall 
Initiative is the right to propose ordinance.  Referendum requires ordinances to be submitted to a vote.  
Recall is the process used to recall elected officials. 
 
These processes provide people an opportunity to take a direct and active role in their democracy.  
Initiative and referendum also allows the people some degree of check and balance to the power of the 
elected officials.  Chapter 8 of the Home Rule Charter includes a clause that restricts the use of the 
initiative and referendum processes to a manner consistent with the rights protected by the state and 
federal constitutions and laws.  The original drafting of the Home Rule Charter included a thirty (30) day 
time period after the county board passed an ordinance before the ordinance became effective.  This 
was changed to forty-five (45) days through an amendment to the Charter that was approved by the 
citizens on November 2, 2010. 
 
Bonding 
Section 9.05 of the Charter states that by ordinance, Ramsey County may issue general or special 
bonds, notes, obligations, or evidence of indebtedness for any authorized corporate purpose. 
 
Prior to the Charter, Ramsey County, like all counties in the state, was required to go to the legislature 
for approval of bonding authority or obtain the approval of the majority of the voters in an election.  
Within the five year period from 1989 to 1994, the legislature established an optional program for 
counties to bond for capital improvements according to a formula set by state law. 
 
In the second year into the program, the legislature changed the formula which resulted in a 35% 
reduction in the authorized bonding capability the county originally had.  This had the effect of curtailing 
many of the upgrading and replacement projects scheduled for county roads and parks.   
 
The Charter shifted management decisions on bonding from the legislature to the county and opened 
the process to increased citizen participation.  The County is required to use an ordinance procedure 
for bonding; thus citizen input is expanded through public hearings and the referendum process. 
 
The County’s capital improvement plan would be a part of the county budget which requires public 
hearings prior to adoption. 
 
Amending the Home Rule Charter 
Chapter 11 of the Charter provides a process for amending the Charter.  Amendments may be 
proposed by a charter commission or by a sufficient petition of five percent of the number of voters 
registered as of the last previous state general election in the county.   
 
The County Board may, by ordinance, propose charter amendments to the Ramsey County Charter 
Commission.  After review, the Charter Commission shall approve or reject the proposed amendment 



 

 
RAMSEY COUNTY | 6 

 

or suggest a substitute amendment.  The resulting amendment shall be submitted to a vote of the 
citizens at the next general election. 
 
Upon recommendation of the charter commission, the county board may enact a charter amendment 
by ordinance by an affirmative vote of all its members after a public hearing upon two weeks published 
notice containing the text of the proposed amendment.  Any Charter amendment shall not become 
effective until 90 days following passage and is subject to referendum. 
 
Role of the Charter Commission 
Chapter 11 also details the process for appointment to the Ramsey County Charter Commission.  
Appointments to the Ramsey County Charter Commission are made by the Chief Judge of the Second 
Judicial District.  Essentially, the role of the Ramsey County Charter Commission is to propose 
amendments to the Ramsey County Home Rule Charter, and to oversee the amendment process.   
 
The Charter states: “The charter commission members shall periodically review the charter and 
propose any necessary amendments.  The commission shall review any proposed amendments, 
declare the sufficiency of a petition, prepare a summary of any proposed amendment, recommend any 
revisions to proposed amendments, and submit proposed amendments to an election.” 
 
Areas of Ramsey County government that were not changed through the Charter 
Members of the Charter Commission determined that several areas of current county government were 
working well and were not in need of change.  Those areas included: 
• The provision that County Board members would continue to be elected from seven districts and 

serve four-year staggered terms. 
• The County Attorney and Sheriff would continue to be elected. 
• The County would continue to have a professional, strong manager form of administration, with a 

new title of County Manager. 
• The Personnel Code would remain as directed within state statutes. 
• The charter would not impair municipal powers. 

 
Amendments to the Ramsey County Home Rule 
The following Amendments to the Ramsey County Home Rule Charter have been adopted by Ramsey 
County voters: 
 
November 9, 1994 
• Section 2.02 K - “Shall the Ramsey County Home Rule Charter be amended to require the County 

Board to maintain a policy which provides for no net loss of park, recreational or open space land 
and facilities?” 

• Section 7.03 - Shall the Ramsey County Home Rule Charter be amended to provide that a County 
Board appointment to fill a vacancy in the elected offices of County Attorney or County Sheriff 
continue only until the next general election, instead of for the completion of the four-year term as 
is presently provided?” 

 
November 7, 2000 
• Section 2.02 M - “Should the Ramsey County Charter be amended to allow the Board of 

Commissioners the option to competitively negotiate the terms of construction contracts including 
the solicitation of proposals on a design/build basis rather than only awarding such contracts to the 
lowest responsible bidder? 



 

 
RAMSEY COUNTY | 7 

 

• Section 6.01 D, E, F, and G – “Should the Ramsey County Home Charter be amended to require 
the Board of Commissioners to engage in periodic strategic planning and allow for input from the 
Charter Commission on the County’s budget and its relationship to the strategic plan?” 

 
November 5, 2002 
• Section 7.02 – “Should the Ramsey County Charter be amended to require elected officials to 

forfeit their office at the time they plead guilty to or are found guilty of a felony level offense instead 
of at the time sentencing as currently provided?” 

 
November 2, 2010 
• Section 5.02 and Section 8.06 – “Should the Ramsey County Home Rule Charter be amended to 

increase the time period to obtain signatures for a referendum petition from thirty (30) days to forty-
five (45) days after an ordinance is published?” 

 
Conclusion 
In 1990, Ramsey County voters adopted Minnesota’s first county home rule charter.  Following a two-
year enactment period, the Ramsey County Home Rule Charter became effective November 6, 1992, 
and continues to serve as a model for other counties. 

 



Revised 1/2023  

 

 
RAMSEY COUNTY CHARTER COMMISSION  

ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

• Support “good government” the overarching intent of the Home Rule Charter is to “…make 
county government more visible and responsive to the residents of the county and to provide 
ways to make county government more flexible and efficient in addressing the needs of county 
residents.” 

• Have an interest in learning about and discussion of Ramsey County. 
• Recognize the roles of elected officials vs those of Charter Commission Members 

o Charter Commission Members are appointed by the District Court 
o County Commissioners, Attorney, and Sheriff are elected by the citizens 
o The Charter provides the mechanisms for elected County Commissioners to make the 

policy decisions 
o The Charter provides the mechanisms for professional staff to design, develop, and 

deliver services for the citizens of the County 
• Periodically review the Charter 
• Propose any necessary amendments to the Home Rule Charter 
• Oversee the amendment process including 

o Review of any proposed amendments 
o Declare the sufficiency of a petition 
o Prepare a summary of any proposed amendment 
o Recommend any necessary revisions to proposed amendments 
o Submit proposed amendments to an election 

• Attend all meetings of the Ramsey County Charter Commission 
• Prepare for meetings by reading supplied documents prior to the meeting 
• Notify Chief Clerk staff if unable to attend a meeting 

o Chief Clerk phone: 651-266-9200 
o Chief Clerk email: chiefclerk@ramseycounty.us 

mailto:chiefclerk@ramseycounty.us


 

 
REVISED AND ADOPTED FEBRUARY 6, 2023                                                        RAMSEY COUNTY 

| 1 
 

RAMSEY COUNTY CHARTER COMMISSION 
BYLAWS 

 
 
Commission Members 
Membership is provided for in the Charter. The members of the Commission shall consist of two (2) 
persons from each of the seven (7) Ramsey County Commissioner Districts and three (3) persons at-
large for the entire County. Each member shall be appointed by the Chief Judge of the Ramsey County 
District Court for a term of four (4) years and may serve no more than two (2) consecutive terms. The 
Chief Judge shall also appoint an individual to fill a vacancy and to complete an unexpired term.  
 
A member may resign by delivering a written resignation to the Chair of with three (3) consecutive 
unexcused absences.  An unexcused absence is defined as not providing notice to the Chair or Vice-
Chair before the meeting.  For purposes of quorum, the resignation shall take place upon delivery of the 
written resignation or at the adjournment of the meeting and constitutes the third absence. At it’s next 
meeting, the Commission shall declare a vacancy and request the Chief Judge appoint a member for 
the reminder of the term.  
 
Officers 
The officers of the Commission shall consist of a Chair and a Vice-Chair. Officers shall be elected 
during the last meeting of each calendar year and shall serve at the pleasure of the Commission for a 
term of one year beginning at the first of the calendar year. A nominating committee shall be appointed 
before the last meeting of each calendar year that will nominate at least one individual for each office.  
Further nominations may be made by the Commission prior to each annual election.  
 
The Chair shall preside at all meetings. The Vice-Chair shall preside in the absence of the Chair and 
during any temporary absence of that officer. 
 
Order of Business 
The order of business may be as follows: 

1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call/Attendance 
3. Approval of the Agenda  
4. Approval of Minutes 
5. Old Business 
6. New Business 
7. Standing Committee Reports 
8. Citizen Input 
9. Future Agenda Items 
10. Adjournment 

 
Procedure 
Robert’s Rules of Order, duly revised, will govern, except as provided in the Bylaws. All motions will 
require a second, but a second does not indicate support of the motion. Discussion should follow the 
making and seconding of a motion in order to focus the scope of discussion. 



 

 
REVISED AND ADOPTED FEBRUARY 6, 2023                                                        RAMSEY COUNTY 

| 2 
 

 
The Chair is the initial arbiter of procedural disputes but can be overrule by a majority vote. The Chair 
may make motions, second a motion, and participate in discussion as any member. In participating in 
discussion, the Chair should ensure that all members have an opportunity to be heard.   
 
A member may offer a “friendly amendment,” and if agreed by the maker of the motion, will be deemed 
adopted without vote.  
 
A simple majority of members present at a meeting is sufficient for adoption of any motion, except for 
motion (1) to amend these Bylaws, or (2) to submit a proposed amendment to an election. For these 
votes, a majority equal to quorum is required. 
 
Quorum 
A quorum of the Commission members shall consist of a majority of the number of appointed and 
sworn members, but a quorum is not necessary to hold a meeting or to adjourn.   
 
Ad Hoc Committees 
The Chair may create Ad Hoc Committees to address specific issues, as required. 
 
Conflicts of Interest 
When a member believes that he or she has a conflict of interest in voting on a particular issue, he or 
she may refrain from voting or disclose the potential conflict to the Chair.  If the Chair agrees that the 
potential conflict of interest is substantial or would give the appearance of impropriety, the member 
shall abstain from voting on the issue.  If the Chair does not believe that abstention is required, the 
member may choose to vote or abstain. 
 
Meetings 
Meetings of the Commission may be set by the Commission, the Chair, or any five (5) members. 
Meetings will be held both in the city of St. Paul and its suburbs. 
 
Notice 
At least three (3) days notice, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, of each meeting of the 
Commission shall be delivered to each member of the Commission.  Notice shall be deemed delivered 
if properly mailed to the last known address or if sent by electronic mail to an address provided by the 
member for that purpose.  
 
Administrative Support 
Administrative support to the Commission will be provided by the County Manager’s Office. The County 
Attorney’s Office will provide legal counsel to the Commission. 
 
Administrative support shall keep the records of the Commission and shall transmit all notices and 
messages from or on behalf of the Commission.  Minutes prepared by the administrative support 
County are official minutes of the meeting after approval at the next meeting.  Until adopted, they are 
unofficial, but are subject to the Minnesota Governmental Data Practices Act.  
 



Page 1 of 5 

ROBERTS RULES CHEAT SHEET 
 

To: You say: Interrupt 
Speaker 

Second 
Needed 

Debatable Amendable Vote 
Needed 

Adjourn "I move that we adjourn" No Yes No No Majority 
Recess "I move that we recess until…" No Yes No Yes Majority 
Complain about noise, room 
temp., etc. 

"Point of privilege" Yes No No No Chair 
Decides 

Suspend further consideration of 
something 

"I move that we table it" No Yes No No Majority 

End debate "I move the previous question" No Yes No No 2/3 
Postpone consideration of 
something 

"I move we postpone this matter 
until…" 

No Yes Yes Yes Majority 

Amend a motion "I move that this motion be amended 
by…" 

No Yes Yes Yes Majority 

Introduce business (a primary 
motion) 

"I move that…" No Yes Yes Yes Majority 

The above listed motions and points are listed in established order of precedence. When any one of them is pending, you may not introduce another that 
is listed below, but you may introduce another that is listed above it. 
 
To: You say: Interrupt 

Speaker 
Second 
Needed 

Debatable Amendable Vote Needed 

Object to procedure or 
personal affront 

"Point of order" Yes No No No Chair decides 

Request information "Point of information" Yes No No No None 
Ask for vote by actual count 
to verify voice vote 

"I call for a division of the house" Must be done 
before new 
motion 

No No No None unless 
someone 
objects 

Object to considering some 
undiplomatic or improper 
matter 

"I object to consideration of this 
question" 

Yes No No No 2/3 

Take up matter previously 
tabled 

"I move we take from the table…" Yes Yes No No Majority 

Reconsider something 
already disposed of 

"I move we now (or later) reconsider 
our action relative to…" 

Yes Yes Only if original 
motion was 
debatable 

No Majority 

Consider something out of its 
scheduled order 

"I move we suspend the rules and 
consider…" 

No Yes No No 2/3 

Vote on a ruling by the Chair "I appeal the Chair’s decision" Yes Yes Yes No Majority 
The motions, points and proposals listed above have no established order of preference; any of them may be introduced at any time except when meeting 
is considering one of the top three matters listed from the first chart (Motion to Adjourn, Recess or Point of Privilege).  
 



Page 2 of 5 

PROCEDURE FOR HANDLING A MAIN MOTION 
 
 

NOTE:  Nothing goes to discussion without a motion being on the floor.  
 
Obtaining and assigning the floor 
 
A member raises hand when no one else has the floor  

• The chair recognizes the member by name 
 
How the Motion is Brought Before the Assembly 
 

• The member makes the motion: I move that (or "to") ... and resumes his seat. 
• Another member seconds the motion: I second the motion or I second it or second. 
• The chair states the motion: It is moved and seconded that ... Are you ready for the 

question? 
 
Consideration of the Motion 
 

1. Members can debate the motion.  
2. Before speaking in debate, members obtain the floor. 
3. The maker of the motion has first right to the floor if he claims it properly 
4. Debate must be confined to the merits of the motion.  
5. Debate can be closed only by order of the assembly (2/3 vote) or by the chair if no 

one seeks the floor for further debate.  
 

The chair puts the motion to a vote 
 

1. The chair asks: Are you ready for the question? If no one rises to claim the floor, the 
chair proceeds to take the vote.  

2. The chair says: The question is on the adoption of the motion that ... As many as 
are in favor, say ‘Aye’. (Pause for response.) Those opposed, say 'Nay'. (Pause for 
response.)   Those abstained please say ‘Aye’. 

 
The chair announces the result of the vote. 
 

1. The ayes have it, the motion carries, and ... (indicating the effect of the vote) or  
2. The nays have it and the motion fails  
 

WHEN DEBATING YOUR MOTIONS 
 

1. Listen to the other side 
2. Focus on issues, not personalities 
3. Avoid questioning motives 
4. Be polite 



Page 3 of 5 

HOW TO ACCOMPLISH WHAT YOU WANT TO DO IN MEETINGS 
 

 
MAIN MOTION 
 
You want to propose a new idea or action for the group. 

• After recognition, make a main motion. 
• Member: "Madame  Chairman, I move that _________." 

 
AMENDING A MOTION 
 
You want to change some of the wording that is being discussed. 

• After recognition, "Madame  Chairman, I move that the motion be amended by 
adding the following words ________." 

• After recognition, "Madame  Chairman, I move that the motion be amended by 
striking out the following words ________." 

• After recognition, "Madame  Chairman, I move that the motion be amended by 
striking out the following words, _________, and adding in their place the following 
words ________." 

 
REFER TO A COMMITTEE 
 
You feel that an idea or proposal being discussed needs more study and investigation. 

• After recognition, "Madame  Chairman, I move that the question be referred to a 
committee made up of members Smith, Jones and Brown." 

 
POSTPONE DEFINITELY 
 
You want the membership to have more time to consider the question under discussion 
and you want to postpone it to a definite time or day, and have it come up for further 
consideration. 

• After recognition, "Madame Chairman, I move to postpone the question until 
________." 

 
PREVIOUS QUESTION 
 
You think discussion has gone on for too long and you want to stop discussion and vote. 

• After recognition, "Madam President, I move the previous question." 
 
LIMIT DEBATE 
 
You think discussion is getting long, but you want to give a reasonable length of time for 
consideration of the question. 

• After recognition, "Madam President, I move to limit discussion to two minutes per 
speaker." 

 



Page 4 of 5 

POSTPONE INDEFINITELY 

You want to kill a motion that is being discussed. 
• After recognition, "Madam Moderator, I move to postpone the question indefinitely."

POSTPONE INDEFINITELY 

You are against a motion just proposed and want to learn who is for and who is against the 
motion. 

• After recognition, "Madame  President, I move to postpone the motion indefinitely."

RECESS 

You want to take a break for a while. 
• After recognition, "Madame  Moderator, I move to recess for ten minutes."

ADJOURNMENT 

You want the meeting to end. 
• After recognition, "Madame  Chairman, I move to adjourn."

PERMISSION TO WITHDRAW A MOTION 

You have made a motion and after discussion, are sorry you made it. 
• After recognition, "Madam President, I ask permission to withdraw my motion."

CALL FOR ORDERS OF THE DAY 

At the beginning of the meeting, the agenda was adopted. The chairman is not following 
the order of the approved agenda. 

• Without recognition, "Call for orders of the day."

SUSPENDING THE RULES 

The agenda has been approved and as the meeting progressed, it became obvious that an 
item you are interested in will not come up before adjournment. 

• After recognition, "Madam Chairman, I move to suspend the rules and move item 5
to position 2."

POINT OF PERSONAL PRIVILEGE 

The noise outside the meeting has become so great that you are having trouble hearing. 
• Without recognition, "Point of personal privilege."
• Chairman: "State your point."
• Member: "There is too much noise, I can't hear."



Page 5 of 5 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

You are going to propose a question that is likely to be controversial and you feel that 
some of the members will try to kill it by various maneuvers. Also you want to keep out 
visitors and the press. 

• After recognition, "Madame  Chairman, I move that we go into a committee of the
whole."

POINT OF ORDER 

It is obvious that the meeting is not following proper rules. 
• Without recognition, "I rise to a point of order," or "Point of order."

POINT OF INFORMATION 

You are wondering about some of the facts under discussion, such as the balance in the 
treasury when expenditures are being discussed. 

• Without recognition, "Point of information."

POINT OF PARLIAMENTARY INQUIRY 

You are confused about some of the parliamentary rules. 
• Without recognition, "Point of parliamentary inquiry."

APPEAL FROM THE DECISION OF THE CHAIR 

Without recognition, "I appeal from the decision of the chair." 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HOME RULE CHARTER 
 

FOR 
 

RAMSEY COUNTY 
 

MINNESOTA 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
           Effective Date____ 
           November 6, 1992 
For questions or information, 
please call 651-266-8000        Amended________ 
           November 9, 1994 
           November 7, 2000 
           November 5, 2002 
           November 2, 2010 



CHAPTER 1 
POWERS OF THE COUNTY 

 
 
 
Sec. 1.01 General Grant of Powers 
 

Except as this charter expressly provides to the contrary, Ramsey County 
shall have all powers possible for a county to have, as now or hereafter 
granted or allowed by the constitutions and laws of the United States and 
the State of Minnesota, as fully as though each power comprised in that 
authority were specified in this charter. 

 
 
Sec. 1.02 Construction of Powers 

 
In this charter no mention of a specific power is exclusive or restricts the 
authority that the county would have if the specific power were not 
mentioned.  This charter shall be  liberally construed within the limits 
imposed by this charter or the constitution or laws of the United States or 
the State of Minnesota.  The county shall have all powers necessary or 
convenient for the conduct of its affairs, including all powers that counties 
may now or hereafter assume under the home rule provisions of the 
constitution and laws of Minnesota. 

 
 
Sec. 1.03 Exercise of Powers 
 

All powers of the county shall be executed as provided by this charter, or, 
if the charter makes no provision, as provided by ordinance or resolution 
of the county board. 

 
 
Sec. 1.04 Municipal Powers Reserved 
 

No existing function, duty, or power of any political subdivision within 
Ramsey County, other than Ramsey County and its agencies, is 
transferred, altered or impaired by this charter. 

 

 - 1 - 



CHAPTER 2 
COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 
 
Sec. 2.01 Composition:  Terms, Qualifications and Compensation of Members 
 

A. There shall be a Board of Commissioners of Ramsey County, (hereafter 
"county board"), State of Minnesota, composed of seven members 
elected by districts. 

 
B. Members of the county board shall be elected as provided in Chapter 7 of 

this charter, for terms of four years beginning the first Monday in January 
after their election; but members shall continue to serve until their 
successors have been elected and take office.  The terms of the county 
board members shall be staggered as provided by law. 

 
C. Qualifications 

 
1. A person shall be eligible to be elected to or to hold the office of 

member of the county board if the person is an eligible voter of the 
county, has been a resident of the district from which the person is 
seeking election for 30 days, and has filed the affidavit of candidacy 
as required by state law.  If a member ceases to be an eligible voter of 
the county or a resident of the district from which elected, or is 
convicted of a felony or any other offense which would create a 
vacancy in office as provided by the state constitution or other law, the 
member shall immediately forfeit the office. 

 
2. No county commissioner shall hold another elected office or be 

employed by the county during tenure as commissioner.  No 
commissioner shall receive any money or other valuable thing as a 
condition of voting or inducement to vote for any contract or other item 
under consideration by the board.  Every election and every contract 
or payment voted for or made contrary to this section is void.  Any 
violation of this section is a malfeasance in office. 

 
D. Compensation 

 
1. The county board may determine the amount of the annual salary of 

its members by ordinance.  The ordinance shall state the dollar 
amount of the annual salary and shall be passed by July 1 of the year 
prior to the effective date of the ordinance. 

 
2. The salary ordinance shall not be effective until the first business day 

of the following January.  A petition asking for an election on the 
proposed ordinance, signed by registered voters of the county equal 
in number to ten percent of those who voted at the last general 
election for the office of President of the United States, is to be filed 
with the county within 30 days following its publication.  The salary 

 - 2 - 



ordinance, thus petitioned, shall not be effective until it has been 
approved by the majority of those voting on the question at a regular 
or special election. 

 
3. Salaries thus fixed by ordinance shall remain in effect until changed 

by similar action, except that the board may at any time by ordinance 
fix such salaries in a smaller amount for any year. 

 
4. Members of the county board shall receive their actual and necessary 

expenses incurred in the performance of their functions.  The type and 
amount of expenses may be determined by the county board in the 
administrative code. 

 
5. Fees, payments or other compensation paid to county board 

members, in exchange for representing the county, by outside boards, 
committees or other government agencies shall be remitted to the 
county treasury.  Ramsey County may pay its board members 
additional fees for representing the county on outside boards, 
committees or other government agencies, provided that such 
payments are authorized in the annual salary ordinance. 

 
Sec. 2.02 Powers of the County Board 
 
The county board shall be the policy-determining body of the county.  Except as 
otherwise provided by the Constitution of the State of Minnesota, or by this charter, the 
county board shall have all the powers of the county.  Without limitation of the foregoing 
grant or of other powers given it by this charter, the county board shall have power: 
 

A. To appoint, review, and remove the county manager. 
 

B. To establish, structure, merge, or abolish any county department, office, 
agency, board or commission and to prescribe the function of any county 
department, office, agency, board or commission, with the following 
exceptions: 

 
1. That no function assigned by this charter to a particular department, 

office, agency, board or commission may be discontinued or assigned 
to any other unless the charter is amended; and 

 
2. That this section does not alter the obligation of the county to provide 

services mandated by state or federal law. 
 

C. Subject to the limitations provided by law: 
 

1. To levy taxes and special assessments; 
 

2. To issue debt instruments and borrow money; and 
 
3. To set fees and designate the collection and disposition of such fees 

by any county department, office, agency or board. 

 - 3 - 



D. To adopt a budget and to make appropriations for county purposes. 
 

E. To adopt and amend an administrative code. 
 
F. To make investigations into the affairs of the county and the conduct of 

any county department, office, agency, board or commission.  For this 
purpose, the county board may authorize the county attorney to 
subpoena witnesses, administer oaths, take testimony and require the 
production of evidence.  In the event that the office of  county attorney is 
the subject of the investigation the county board shall obtain independent 
counsel.  Any person who fails or refuses to obey any lawful order issued 
in the exercise of these powers by the county board shall be guilty of a 
misdemeanor. 

 
G. To enter into joint powers agreements as provided by state law. 

 
H. To require periodic and special reports concerning their activities from all 

county departments, offices, agencies, boards or commissions. 
 

I. To provide for an independent audit of the finances of the county. 
 

J. To adopt, amend or repeal ordinances and resolutions. 
 

K. To sell, lease or otherwise dispose of park property upon such terms as it 
considers best in the public interest. In the event the intended use is not 
consistent with park purposes, before disposal of any real property for 
such inconsistent use, the county board shall hold a public hearing as to 
the intended use of the property, after first providing at least twenty days 
written notice of the hearing date to the municipality in which the property 
is located and to all owners of land within 1,000 feet of the real property to 
be disposed. 

 
Before the sale, lease or disposal of park property for any inconsistent 
use, the county board shall adopt, by resolution, a policy providing for no 
net loss of park, recreational or open space land and facilities.  At a 
minimum, the policy shall provide that park, recreational and open space 
land acquired for such purposes may not be converted to another use 
unless such land and recreational facilities are replaced in an equivalent 
amount and of similar quality. 
 

L. To acquire by  gift, devise, purchase or condemnation any property on 
such terms as the county board deems appropriate, and to sell or lease 
any property of the county, as needed for the full discharge of the powers 
and duties of the county, subject to this charter and state law. 

 
M. To contract for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of real 

property or buildings in a manner determined by the county board, to 
serve the interest of the public in regard to cost, speed, and quality of 
construction.  Alternative construction procurement methods include, but 
are not limited to:  (1) the solicitation of proposals for construction on a 
design/build basis and subsequent negotiation of contract terms; or (2) 

 - 4 - 



the solicitation of proposals for a construction management agreement 
which may include a guaranteed maximum price. 

 
Sec. 2.03 Organization:  Officers 
 
The county board shall elect from among its members a chair and a vice chair, each of 
whom shall serve at its pleasure.  The chair shall preside at county board meetings.  If at 
any meeting, the chair is not present or is unable to act, the vice chair shall preside at 
that meeting. 
 
Sec. 2.04 Procedure:  Meetings, Rules and Record, Voting 
 

A. The county board shall meet at least twice each month at the times and 
dates established by the board at its first meeting in January of each year 
and on the days prescribed by the general laws of this state to transact 
any business that may properly come before the board. 

 
 All meetings shall be public.  The county board by majority vote in a 

public meeting may decide to hold a closed meeting to consider issues 
allowed by law or judicial interpretations of the law, including strategy for 
labor negotiations, personnel matters and litigation. 

 
B. Special meetings may be held on the call of the chair or of four or more 

members and, whenever practicable, upon no less than three days 
notice.  All business conducted at the special meetings shall be confined 
to that stated in the notice. 

 
 Emergency meetings may be held because of circumstances that, in the 

judgment of the county board, require immediate consideration by the 
county board.  As soon as practicable after notice has been given to 
county board members, good faith efforts shall be made to give notice to 
each news media in the same method used to notify the board members.  
This notice shall include the subject of the meeting, the date, time, and 
location. 

 
C. The county board shall determine its own rules of procedure and order of 

business and shall provide for keeping a record of its official proceedings.  
The official public record shall be available in the office of the county 
manager and shall be distributed to all city halls and public libraries 
throughout the county within one week of approval. 

 
D. Voting, except on procedural motions, shall be by roll call and the ayes 

and nays shall be recorded in the record.  A majority of the county board 
shall be four (4) members. A majority shall constitute a quorum.  No 
business shall be done unless voted for by a majority of the whole board, 
except as provided for elsewhere in this charter, but less than a majority 
may adjourn. 

 - 5 - 



CHAPTER 3 
COUNTY MANAGER 

 
 
 
Sec. 3.01 Appointment and Removal of the County Manager 
 

A. The county board shall appoint a county manager and fix the manager's 
compensation and terms of employment.  The appointment shall be 
based on executive and administrative qualifications and experience.  
The county manager need not be a resident of Ramsey County nor of the 
State of Minnesota at the time of appointment. 

 
B. The county board, upon the vote of four members for a resolution to 

remove, may remove the county manager from office at pleasure.  
 
C. By letter filed with the chair of the county board, the county manager may 

designate a qualified county administrative officer or employee to 
exercise the powers and perform the duties of county manager during the 
county manager's temporary absence or disability. If the county manager 
fails to make such a designation, or if there is a vacancy in the office of 
county manager, the county board shall designate by resolution a 
qualified person to perform this function. 

 
Sec. 3.02 Powers and Duties of the County Manager 
 
The county manager shall be the chief administrative officer of the county and shall be 
responsible to the county board for proper administration of the affairs of the county and 
for carrying out the policies of the county board.  The county manager shall: 
 

A. Appoint, review, transfer, suspend or remove all appointive department 
heads and the county manager's appointive staff, and authorize such 
department heads to appoint, review, transfer, suspend or remove 
subordinates in their  departments, offices or agencies. 

 
B. Develop a proposed written administrative code which at minimum shall 

identify and define specific areas of accountability, delegation and 
reporting requirements for county departments, offices, agencies, boards 
and commissions, and shall enforce and maintain such administrative 
code after adoption by the county board by resolution. 

 
C. Attend county board meetings and participate in the county board's 

deliberations, but not vote on matters before the county board. 
 
D. Supervise the enforcement of county ordinances  and compliance with 

the terms of all county franchises, leases, contracts, permits and licenses. 
 
E. Provide clerk services to the county board, provide notice of and keep a 

record of all county board proceedings. 

 - 6 - 



F. Prepare and submit the annual budget proposal and capital 
improvements plan proposal to the county board. 

 
G. Examine regularly the accounts, records and operations of every county 

department, office and agency, board or commission; make regular 
reports to the county board on county affairs; keep the county board fully 
advised on the financial condition and future needs of the county and 
make such recommendations on county affairs as deemed desirable. 

 
H. Submit to the county board at the end of the fiscal year a complete report 

on the finances and administrative activities of the county for the 
preceding year and prepare and make available for distribution to the 
public, after the end of each fiscal year, an annual report on county affairs 
during that fiscal year. 

 
I. Perform such other duties and exercise such other responsibilities as may 

be necessary and appropriate to the county manager's function as the 
head of county administration. 

 - 7 - 



CHAPTER 4 
ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENTS, OFFICES, AND AGENCIES 

 
 
 
Sec. 4.01 General Provisions 
 

A. The activities of departments, offices, and agencies shall be those 
established by this charter, by ordinance of the county board, or by other 
law.  The activities of those departments, offices, and agencies shall be 
identified and defined in the administrative code and will be under the 
direction and supervision of the county manager. 

 
B. Each department, office or agency shall be administered by an officer 

appointed pursuant to the terms of this charter, subject to the direction 
and supervision of the county manager. 

 
C. County administrative officers appointed by the county manager may be 

suspended or removed by written order of the county manager.  The 
suspension or removal shall take effect upon the signing of the order 
therefore; and the county manager, upon signing such an order, shall 
cause the officer concerned to be served immediately with a signed copy 
of the order.  The action of the county manager in any such cases is final 
and shall not be subject to appeal. 

 
 With respect to all appointed department heads who are incumbents as of 

the effective date of this charter, the county manager may recommend 
removal of an incumbent to the county board for their vote on the 
recommendation. 

 
D. The foregoing provisions shall not apply to the elective offices of sheriff 

and county attorney. 
 
E. Such county officers or employees as the county board may provide shall 

give bond in the amount and with the surety prescribed by the county 
board.  The premiums on such bonds shall be paid by the county. 

 
F. Ramsey County shall be an equal opportunity employer. 

 
Sec. 4.02 Purchasing Officer 
 

A. There may be a county purchasing officer who shall be appointed by the 
county manager. 

 
B. The purchasing officer may contract with other governmental units to 

promote competitive bidding, effect economies in volume buying and 
provide better service. 

 
C. The purchasing officer shall require a performance bond for all contracts 

required to be bid by the Uniform Municipal Contracting Law as amended.  

 - 8 - 



The purchasing officer may require a performance bond or alternative 
form of security for any other contracts. 

 
Sec. 4.03 Personnel Officer 
 
There shall be a county personnel officer appointed to the classified service by the 
county manager, subject to the approval of the county board, who shall administer the 
personnel system of the county in accordance with the personnel law. 

 - 9 - 



CHAPTER 5 
ORDINANCE AND RESOLUTION PROCEDURES 

 
 
 
Sec. 5.01 Ordinance:  Definitions and Vote Required 
 

A. In addition to such other acts as this charter or any other provisions of law 
required to be by ordinance, those acts of the county board which shall be 
by ordinance include the following: 

 
1. Establish, structure, merge, or abolish any county department, office, 

agency, board or commission, except as provided for in this charter. 
 
2. Establish the annual salary for county board members. 
 
3. Authorize the bonding and borrowing of money. 
 
4. Authorize emergency appropriations as defined in this charter. 
 
5. Provide for a fine or other penalty or establish a rule or regulation for 

violation of which a fine or other penalty is imposed. 
 
6. Grant, renew or extend a franchise. 
 
7. Convey or lease, or authorize the conveyance or lease of any park 

lands of the county. 
 
8. Adopt, with or without amendment, ordinances proposed under the 

initiative power. 
 
9. Amend or repeal any ordinance previously adopted, except as 

otherwise provided in Chapter 8 of this charter with respect to repeal 
of ordinances reconsidered under the referendum power. 

 
10. Propose amendments to this charter. 

 
B. Except as otherwise provided in this charter, ordinances shall require an 

affirmative vote of at least four members. 
 
Sec. 5.02 Ordinance Procedures 
 
Every proposed ordinance shall receive two readings:  first, at the time it is presented, 
and second, at the time of the public hearing as required by law.  Every proposed 
ordinance shall be read in full at the meeting at which it is presented; provided that full 
reading may be waived if a copy of the ordinance is supplied to each member of the 
county board prior to its introduction. At the first reading, a date will be set for the public 
hearing which shall be held no sooner than 10 days after the first reading.  The second 
reading shall be at the public hearing and the ordinance may be passed at this meeting. 

 - 10 - 



All ordinances, other than emergency ordinances, shall become effective thirty (30) days 
after passage, unless a later date is specified therein. 
 
Sec. 5.03 Emergency Ordinances 
 
A public emergency is a sudden or unforeseen situation in the county affecting life, 
health, property, or the public peace or public welfare that requires immediate county 
board action. The county board may adopt one or more emergency ordinances.  An 
emergency ordinance may not levy taxes; authorize the issuance of bonds; or grant, 
renew, or extend a franchise; provided however, that nothing in this section is intended 
to prevent the county from making an emergency appropriation or raising emergency 
revenues as authorized in this charter.  An emergency ordinance shall be introduced in 
the form and manner prescribed for ordinances generally except that it shall plainly be 
designated as an emergency ordinance and shall contain, after the enacting clause, a 
declaration stating that an emergency exists, and describing it in clear and specific 
terms.  An emergency ordinance may be passed with or without amendment or it may be 
rejected at the meeting in which it is introduced.  The unanimous vote of the members 
present shall be required for the passage of an emergency ordinance.  Emergency 
ordinances shall be effective upon passage and approval, unless a later date is specified 
in the ordinance, and shall be published once in any legal newspaper.  
 
Sec. 5.04 Resolutions 
 

A. All other acts of the county board shall be by resolution, including but not 
limited to, the following: 

 
1. Adoption and revision of the budget, except as otherwise provided in 

Chapter 10 of this charter. 
 
2. Adoption of a tax levy. 
 
3. The issuance and sale of notes, warrants, certificates, or other 

evidence of indebtedness of Ramsey County in anticipation of tax 
revenue from taxes levied but not collected. 

 
4. Authorization of emergency funding as defined in this charter. 
 
5. Adoption or amendment of the Administrative Code. 
 
6. Approval of collective bargaining agreements, setting wages, salaries, 

and other terms and conditions of employment, except setting the 
salaries of county board members. 

 
7. Approval or amendment of the Personnel Rules provided that such 

approval or amendment by resolution shall receive two readings by 
the county board and that such readings be at least one week apart. 

 
8. Acquisition by gift, devise, purchase or condemnation any real or 

personal property,  and the sale or leasing of any property of the 
county as needed for the full discharge of the powers and duties of 
the county;  park land is not included in this section. 

 - 11 - 



9. Execution of a contract or agreement with a municipal corporation. 
 

B. Except as otherwise provided in this charter, resolutions shall require an 
affirmative vote of at least four members. 

 
Sec. 5.05 Resolution Procedure 
 
Every resolution shall be presented in writing and read in full before a vote is taken 
unless the reading of the resolution is dispensed with by unanimous consent.  
Resolutions shall become effective upon approval. 
 
Sec. 5.06 Ordinances and Resolutions 
 
Each ordinance or resolution shall relate to a single subject which shall be expressed 
clearly in its title.  The enacting clause of each ordinance shall be "The Board of 
Commissioners of the County of Ramsey does ordain..." 
 
Sec. 5.07 Codification 
 
The county board shall provide for the codification of ordinances and the compilation of 
resolutions. Any certified copy of any ordinance or resolution shall be prima facie 
evidence of its adoption and shall be admitted as evidence in any court without further 
proof. 

 - 12 - 



CHAPTER 6 
COORDINATION OF OPERATIONAL SERVICES AND PLANNING 

 
 
 
Sec. 6.01 County Coordination:  Powers and Duties of the County Board 
 

A. In addition to its other powers and duties, the county board shall assume 
responsibility to coordinate county-wide operational services, strategic 
planning, tactical planning, and public data and information systems 
planning. 

 
B. The county board may coordinate these planning functions through 

existing departments, citizen volunteers and also shall work with other 
local governmental units, including school districts, watershed districts, 
and any appropriate regional planning organizations to establish goals, 
objectives, and implementation plans which will provide the most efficient, 
effective delivery of services by the appropriate level of government. 

 
C. The county manager shall prepare all strategic, tactical and public data 

and information system recommendations and reports for consideration 
by the county board.  The board may make such modifications it deems 
necessary to any proposed plans pursuant to any public hearing 
requirements that may apply. 

 
D. To achieve the cooperative delivery of operational services, strategic 

planning, tactical planning and public data information systems planning, 
the county board may join with any other governmental unit(s) in a joint 
exercise of power. 

 
E. The pertinent portions of the county’s strategic, tactical and public data 

and information system programs shall be integrated to the maximum 
extent possible in the county’s annual operations budget.  In addition, the 
geographic information system’s budget may provide for grants or 
matching funds to local governmental units located in Ramsey County. 

 
F. Beginning in the year 2002, the county shall prepare a comprehensive 

strategic plan periodically but must adopt such a plan every ten years 
starting with year 2013. 

 
G. When the county manager submits the annual proposed budget to the 

county board, such budget shall also be provided to the charter 
commission.  The budget document shall identify clearly any proposed 
programs and associated monies included for implementation of strategic, 
tactical and public data and information systems programs. 
 
The commission shall review and may comment upon the county 
manager’s budget proposals in terms of whether, in the view of the 
commission, such proposals implement the requirements set forth in the 

 - 13 - 



section for strategic, tactical and public data and information systems 
planning. 
 
If the commission chooses to comment, their remarks must be filed with 
the board’s clerk at least three weeks prior to the board’s budget 
adoption. 

 
Sec. 6.02 County Plan 
 

A. The county plan shall specify each area for coordination and shall contain 
a statement of the goals and objectives and a plan for implementation.  
The plan shall be based on studies of physical, social, health, human 
services, economic, and governmental conditions and trends and shall be 
designed to coordinate service delivery in the county and to promote the 
general welfare and prosperity of its people. 

 
B. The planning documents in each area should be coordinated with existing 

planning cycles and be adopted within two years after the effective date 
of the charter.  The plan will be reviewed and updated by the county 
board on a regular basis. 

 
C. In addition to the plans for coordination, the plan shall include an official 

map incorporating the comprehensive plans of the local governmental 
units and service sites within the county. 

 
D. The plan shall set forth the county board's policy regarding the 

coordination of service delivery with other units of government, including 
recommendations for: 

 
1. A system of thoroughfares, highways, streets and other public ways; 
 
2. A system of public open spaces, parks, and playgrounds; 
 
3. The location, relocation, and improvement of public buildings of 

county-wide significance; 
 
4. A transit system; 
 
5. The availability and location of public and elderly housing; 
 
6. An adequate system of drainage facilities and control; 
 
7. A solid waste management system; 
 
8. An integrated law enforcement system; 
 
9. An emergency services system; 
 
10. A human service delivery system; 
 
11. A public health service system; and 

 - 14 - 



 
12. Such other matters as may, in the judgment of the county board, be 

beneficial to the county. 
 

E. The county board may also review and comment on areas of coordinating 
policy development including at least the following areas: 

 
1. The coordination of land use plans within the county through the 

local units of government; 
 
2. Service delivery as it relates to development and density of 

development; 
 
3. The general location and extent of development of public utilities 

and terminals, whether publicly or privately owned; 
 
4. Economic development; and 
 
5. Such other matters which the county board deems necessary for 

review to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the residents of 
the county. 

 - 15 - 



CHAPTER 7 
NOMINATIONS AND ELECTIONS 

 
 
 
Sec. 7.01 Nominations & Elections 
 
The nomination and election of any Ramsey County elected official shall be governed by 
state law, except as herein provided. 
 
 
Sec. 7.02        Forfeiture of office 
 
If a Ramsey County elected official is convicted of a felony, pleads guilty to a felony level 
offense, or is found guilty of a felony level offense, the elected official shall forfeit the 
office as of the date the guilty plea or verdict is entered by the court. 
 
 
Sec. 7.03 Vacancy in positions of County Attorney and Sheriff 
 
A vacancy in the office of county attorney or sheriff shall be filled by county board 
appointment.  If the vacancy occurs before the first day to file affidavits of candidacy for 
the next regular county election (held every even numbered year in November), the 
appointed person shall serve only until the qualification of a successor elected at the 
next election to fill the unexpired portion of the term.  If the vacancy occurs on or after 
the first day to file affidavits of candidacy for the next regular county election, the 
appointed person shall serve the remainder of the term. 

 - 16 - 



CHAPTER 8 
INITIATIVE, REFERENDUM, AND RECALL 

 
 
 
Sec. 8.01 Initiative, Referendum, and Recall 
 
The people shall have the right to propose ordinances, to require ordinances to be 
submitted to a vote and to recall elective officials by processes known respectively as 
initiative, referendum, and recall. 
 
The initiative and referendum processes apply to all ordinances and matters that may be 
the subject of an ordinance. 
 
The initiative, referendum, or recall processes will be used in a manner consistent with 
the rights protected by the state and federal constitutions and laws. 
 
Sec. 8.02 Petition 
 
Recall petitions shall be as provided by state law. 
 
An initiative or referendum shall be initiated by a petition signed by registered voters of 
the county equal in number to ten per cent of those who voted in the county for the office 
of President of the United States in the last general election. 
 

A. A petition may consist of one or more papers, but each paper circulated 
separately shall contain at its head or attached to it the statement 
required by this charter. 

 
B. Signers of the petition shall sign and print their name and provide the 

street address of their residence. 
 
C. Each separate page of the petition shall have appended thereto a 

certificate, verified by oath that each signature was affixed by the person 
purporting to have signed the same in the presence of the person making 
the certificate.  The person making the certificate shall be a resident of 
the county. 

 
D. Any person whose name appears on a petition may withdraw their name 

by a statement in writing filed with the county manager before the 
manager advises the county board as to the sufficiency of the petition.  
Any name appearing on any petition which does not comply with the 
foregoing requirements shall be stricken, and no names shall be counted 
which have not been verified. 

 
Sec. 8.03 Determination of Sufficiency 
 

A. Any petition seeking initiative, referendum, or recall hereunder shall be 
deemed received by the county board when it is filed with the county 
manager, for which filing there shall be no fee.  Immediately upon receipt 

 - 17 - 



of the petition, the county manager shall examine the petition as to its 
sufficiency and report to the county board within thirty days.  Upon 
receiving the report, the county board shall determine by resolution the 
sufficiency of the petition. 

 
B. Sufficiency requires: 

 
1. A qualifying statement, 
 
2. Qualified signatures of registered voters, 
 
3. Verification of signatures, and 
 
4. The names of petitioners who have withdrawn or have not qualified 

and whose names are stricken and are not to be counted. 
 
Sec. 8.04 Disposition of Insufficient Petitions 
 
If the county board determines that the petition is insufficient or irregular, the county 
manager shall deliver a copy of the petition to the person or persons therein named to 
receive it, together with a written statement of its defects.  The persons circulating the 
petition shall be given thirty (30) days in which to file additional signature papers and to 
correct the petition in all other particulars.  If, at the end of that period, the county board 
finds that the petition is still insufficient or irregular, the petition shall be filed in the office 
of the county manager and the persons circulating the petition shall be notified of the 
defect.  The final finding of insufficiency or irregularity shall not prejudice the filing of a 
new petition for the same purpose nor, in the case of an initiated or referred ordinance, 
shall it prevent the county board from referring the ordinance to the voters at the next 
regular or special election at its option. 
 
Sec. 8.05 Initiative 
 
Any ordinance may be proposed by a petition which shall state at the head of each page 
or attached thereto the exact text of the ordinance sought to be proposed.  If the county 
board fails to enact the ordinance without change within sixty days after the filing of the 
petition with the county manager, it shall be placed on the ballot at the next general 
election occurring in the county.  If no election is to occur within 120 days after the filing 
of the petition, the county board shall, within such 120 day period, call a special election 
on the ordinance.  If a majority of those voting on the ordinance vote in its favor, it shall 
become effective immediately. 
 
Sec. 8.06 Referendum 
 
Any ordinance may be subjected to referendum by a petition filed within forty-five (45) 
days after its publication.  The petition shall state, at the head of each page or in an 
attached paper, a description of the ordinance involved.  Any ordinance upon which a 
petition is filed, other than an emergency ordinance, shall be suspended in its operation 
as soon as the petition is found sufficient.  If the ordinance is not thereafter entirely 
repealed, it shall be placed on the ballot at the next election, or at a special election 
called for that purpose, as the county board shall determine.  The ordinance shall not 
become operative until a majority of those voting on the ordinance vote in its favor. 

 - 18 - 



 
If a petition is filed against an emergency ordinance, the ordinance shall remain in effect, 
but shall be placed on the ballot at the next election or a special election called for that 
purpose, and shall be repealed if a majority of those voting on the ordinance vote to 
repeal it. 
 
Sec. 8.07 Recall 
 
Recall procedures will be in accordance with state law which requires a showing of 
malfeasance or nonfeasance in office. 
 
Sec. 8.08 Repeal of Ordinances Submitted to Voters 
 
No ordinance adopted by the voters on initiative or ordinance approved by referendum 
shall be repealed within one year after its approval. 
 
Sec. 8.09 Limit on Frequency of Repetition 
 
No question may be put to the electorate by initiative, referendum, or recall more than 
once in any 12 month period.  Subsequent submissions shall be placed on the ballot at a 
primary or general election. 

 - 19 - 



CHAPTER 9 
TAXATION AND BONDING 

 
 
 
Sec. 9.01 Authority 
 
The county board shall have full authority over the financial affairs of the county except 
as limited by the State Constitution or this charter.  This authority shall include the power 
by resolution to assess, levy, and collect taxes on all subjects or objects of taxation, and 
by ordinance to issue bonds, except as limited or prohibited by the State Constitution or 
this charter. 
 
Sec. 9.02 Taxing Authority 
 
The county board may levy annually on all taxable property in the county the following 
taxes: 
 

1. A tax for general county purposes. 
 
2. Taxes required for the payment of principal and  interest on bonds, levy 

certificates, and other obligations of the county. 
 
3. Other taxes authorized by law without regard to charter or statutory 

limitations. 
 
Sec. 9.03 Certification of Tax Levy 
 
After the adoption of the budgets as prescribed in this charter, the county board shall 
adopt a tax levy resolution showing the amount which must be provided by an ad 
valorem tax on all taxable real and personal property in the county.  In addition to the 
amount required to be provided, the county board in the adoption of a tax levy resolution 
may include a reasonable allowance for uncollectibles.  The tax levy resolution shall be 
certified in accordance with law. 
 
Sec. 9.04 Tax Anticipation Obligations 
 
The county board, by resolution, may issue and sell notes, warrants, certificates or other 
evidence of indebtedness of Ramsey County in anticipation of tax revenue from taxes 
levied but not collected.  The total amount of the indebtedness outstanding at any time 
shall not exceed 80 percent of the taxes levied by the county for the year before the one 
in which the certificates are issued.  The indebtedness shall mature not later than three 
months after the anticipated date of receipt in full of the taxes so anticipated.  The 
indebtedness shall be negotiable and shall bear interest before and after maturity at 
such rate or rates as the county board shall determine and shall otherwise be issued in 
accordance with this charter. 

 - 20 - 



Sec. 9.05 Bonding 
 
Ramsey County by ordinance and without an election may issue general or special 
bonds, notes, obligations, or evidence of indebtedness for any authorized corporate 
purpose.  Such indebtedness may otherwise be issued on such terms, and at such rate 
or rates as the county board shall determine consistent with Minnesota Statutes relating 
to public indebtedness. 
 
The proceeds of indebtedness shall be applied to the purpose for which the 
indebtedness is issued and may be applied to the payment of any necessary, desirable 
or incidental expenses related thereto.  
 
Notwithstanding any provision of this charter, the county may issue indebtedness for 
emergency borrowing as provided in Chapter 10.  The certificates of indebtedness for 
emergency borrowing shall not be included in the net debt of the county.  
 
The aggregate principal amount of indebtedness of the county outstanding at any time 
shall not exceed the statutory limitations on indebtedness under Minnesota Statutes, 
Chapter 475, for which purpose there shall not be counted any indebtedness excepted 
from the calculation of net debt by general or special law. 

 - 21 - 



CHAPTER 10 
BUDGET 

 
 
 
Sec. 10.01 Budget 
 

A. Each year the county board shall prepare a budget for the ensuing fiscal 
year.  The budget shall provide a complete financial plan of all county 
funds and activities for the ensuing fiscal year, and be in the form that the 
county board considers desirable.  The budget shall include a clear 
general summary of its contents;  show, in detail, all estimated income, 
indicating the proposed property tax levy, and all proposed expenditures, 
including debt service, for the ensuing fiscal year; and be arranged so as 
to show comparable figures for the last fiscal year expenditures, the 
current fiscal year approved budget, and the proposed budget for the next 
fiscal year.  It is to indicate in separate sections: 

 
1. Proposed expenditures for current operations, including debt 

service, during the ensuing fiscal year, detailed by offices, 
departments and agencies in terms of their respective work 
programs. 

 
2. Proposed capital expenditures during the ensuing fiscal year, 

detailed by offices, departments and agencies when practicable, 
and the proposed method of financing each such capital 
expenditure. 

 
B. The county board may create a tort liability fund by carrying forward an 

unexpended liability appropriation balance from one fiscal year to the 
next. 

 
C. The total of proposed expenditures shall not exceed the total of estimated 

income. 
 
D. The county board must make the proposed budget available to the public 

and hold a public hearing prior to adopting the budget. 
 
E. The annual budget shall be adopted by resolution of the county board. 

 
Sec. 10.02 Budget Process 
 

A. Notice and Hearing: 
 

The county board shall adopt its budget and tax levy after such notice and 
hearing as required by law. 

 - 22 - 



B. Appropriations and Tax Levy: 
 

Adoption of the budget by the county board constitutes appropriations of 
the amounts specified therein as expenditures from the funds indicated 
and constitutes a levy of the tax therein proposed. 

 
Sec. 10.03 Administration of Budget 
 

A. Ramsey County shall pay for obligations in accordance with 
appropriations duly made and payment shall be made in accordance with 
methods and procedures that the county board establishes and approves. 

 
B. Appropriation and Certification of Unencumbered Funds: 

 
1.  No payment shall be made or obligation incurred against an 

allotment or appropriation except in accordance with 
appropriations duly made and unless the county manager first 
certifies that there is a sufficient unencumbered balance in the 
allotment or appropriation and that sufficient funds therefrom are 
or will be available to cover the claim or meet the obligation when 
it becomes due and payable. 

 
2. An authorization of payment or incurring of obligation in violation 

of the provisions of this article is void and a payment so made 
illegal. 

 
Sec. 10.04 Amendments After Adoption 
 

A. Supplemental Appropriations: 
 

The county board may make a supplemental appropriation of funds to a 
county departmental budget during the course of a budget year.  This 
appropriation shall authorize the use and expenditure of funds accruing to 
the county which were not derived from taxation by the county board and 
not anticipated in the budget as estimated receipts. 

 
B. Transfer of Appropriation: 

 
The county board may, by resolution, transfer part or all of any 
unencumbered appropriation balance or unappropriated funds from one 
department, office or fund to another department, office or fund. 

 
C. Emergency Appropriations: 

 
Declaration of Emergency:  the county board may pass an emergency 
ordinance which declares a public emergency to exist.  A public 
emergency is a sudden or unforeseen circumstance in the county 
affecting life, health, property, public peace, or public welfare that requires 
immediate county board action. 

 - 23 - 



D. Emergency Revenues: 
 

Once an emergency has been declared, the following sources of revenue 
may be used to meet the emergency: 

 
1. The Board may, by resolution, transfer part or all of any 

unencumbered appropriation balance or unappropriated funds from 
any department, office, or fund to respond to the emergency. 

 
2. The county board may, by a unanimous vote of those present, pass 

a resolution authorizing the issuance of emergency notes.  These 
notes may be renewed from time to time but the emergency notes 
and renewals in a fiscal year shall be paid no later than the last day 
of the fiscal year following that in which the emergency 
appropriation was made. 

 
3. The county board may, by a unanimous vote of those present, pass 

a resolution authorizing the issuance of bonds or other evidences of 
indebtedness without an election consistent with the legal authority 
Ramsey County has been given to issue bonds and other evidences 
of indebtedness. 

 
These bonds or evidences of indebtedness shall become due  
and payable in not more than five years from the date of issue. 

 
4. The county board may, by resolution and a unanimous vote of those 

present, borrow funds and pledge the credit of the county.  The 
county may borrow either from the State of Minnesota, federal 
governmental sources, or from private sources.  These borrowed 
funds may be renewed from time to time but the emergency 
borrowed funds and renewals in a fiscal year shall be paid no later 
than the last day of the fiscal year following that in which the 
emergency appropriation was made. 

 
Sec. 10.05 Capital Improvements Plan 
 

A. The county board shall prepare a five year capital improvements plan to 
include: 

 
1. A clear, general summary of its contents; 
 
2. A list of all capital improvements costing over a specified dollar 

amount designated by the county board which are proposed to be 
undertaken during the next five ensuing fiscal years with appropriate 
information to show the necessity for these improvements; 

 
3. Cost estimates, method of financing, and recommended time 

schedules for each of these improvements; 
 
4. The estimated cost of operating and maintaining the facilities to be 

constructed or acquired; and 

 - 24 - 



 
5. The estimated cost for debt service for capital expenditures.  These 

will be financed from current revenues in the ensuing fiscal year and 
shall be included in the budget as well as in the capital program.  
Appropriations for such   expenditures shall be included in the 
budget. 

 
B. Hearings, Date for Adoption, Submission of Capital Budget: 

 
1. Annually, the county board shall cause to be prepared a 

recommended capital improvements budget for the ensuing fiscal 
year. The proposed budget shall then become a public record. 

 
2. The above information shall be revised and extended each year with 

regard to capital improvements still pending or in the process of 
construction or acquisition. 

 
C. Adoption of Capital Budget. 
 

The capital budget shall be adopted by resolution of the county board. 

 - 25 - 



CHAPTER 11 
CHARTER PROVISIONS 

 
 
 
Sec. 11.01 Charter Provisions 
 
An annotated version of this charter, which notes any provisions superseded by law, 
shall be maintained by the Ramsey County Attorney. 
 
If any provision of this charter is held invalid, the other provisions of this charter shall not 
be affected thereby.  If the application of the charter, or any of its provisions, to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the application of the charter and its provisions to 
other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 
Any citations to particular laws or statutes contained in this charter shall be deemed to 
include amendments to such laws or statutes which may be adopted subsequent to the 
effective date of this charter. 
 
Sec. 11.02 Amendment of the Charter 
 

A. Proposal of Amendments: 
 

Home rule charter amendments may be proposed by a charter 
commission or by a sufficient petition of five percent of the number of 
voters registered as of the last previous state general election in the 
county. 
 
The county manager shall verify the sufficiency of the petition to the 
Ramsey County Charter Commission which shall declare the sufficiency 
of the petition. 
 
The county board may, by ordinance, propose charter amendments to the 
Ramsey County Charter Commission.  Within 60 days the commission 
shall review the proposed amendment and may extend the time for 90 
days by filing with the county manager the resolution determining that an 
additional time for review is needed. After reviewing the proposed 
amendment, the charter commission shall approve or reject the proposed 
amendment or suggest a substitute amendment.  The county board shall 
submit the amendment approved by the charter commission, either as 
originally proposed or the substituted amendment, to a vote of the 
electorate. 

 
B. Adoption of Amendments: 

 
A proposed amendment shall be submitted to a vote in the county at the 
next general election.  The amendment shall be adopted if it is passed by 
the same majority required for adoption of the charter. It will take effect in 
30 days after the election has been certified or at such other time as is 
fixed in the amendment. 

 - 26 - 



 
Upon recommendation of the charter commission, the county board may 
enact a charter amendment by ordinance by an affirmative vote of all its 
members after a public hearing upon two weeks published notice 
containing the text of the proposed amendment.  An ordinance amending 
the charter shall not become effective until 90 days after passage and is 
subject to referendum. 

 
C. Abandonment of Home Rule Charter 

 
A proposal to abandon the charter shall be presented, adopted, and 
become effective in the same manner as a charter amendment.  The 
proposal shall include provisions for transition to a statutory county form 
of government. 

 
Sec. 11.03 Charter Commission 
 
A seventeen member standing Ramsey County Charter Commission shall be appointed 
by the District Court.  Of the seventeen members appointed, one from each 
commissioner district shall be appointed for a two year term, and one from each district 
for a four year term.  Two of the at-large members shall be appointed for two-year terms 
and one for a four-year term.  All subsequent terms shall be four year terms. No person 
shall be appointed to more than two successive terms as a commission member. 
 
The county board shall provide the necessary funds for the charter commission to 
operate. 
 
The county attorney shall be the attorney for the charter commission. 
 
The charter commission members shall periodically review the charter and propose any 
necessary amendments.  The commission shall review any proposed amendments, 
declare the sufficiency of a petition, prepare a summary of any proposed amendment, 
recommend any revisions to proposed amendments, and submit proposed amendments 
to an election. 

 - 27 - 



CHAPTER 12 
TRANSITIONAL  PROVISIONS 

 
 
 
Sec. 12.01 Effective Date 
 
This charter shall take effect two years after adoption of the charter form of government 
by the voters of Ramsey County.  The effective date shall be November 6, 1992 if 
adopted at the November 6, 1990 election. 
 
Sec. 12.02 Continuity 
 

A. The taking effect of this charter causes no break in the existence or legal 
status of the county. 

 
B. All rights, claims, causes of action, contracts, and legal and administrative 

proceedings of the county that exist just before the charter takes effect 
continue unimpaired by the charter after it takes effect. 

 
C. All county ordinances, resolutions, orders, rules and regulations that are 

in force just before this charter takes effect remain in force after that time, 
insofar as consistent with the charter, without change until amended or 
repealed. 

 
D. All elected officials of the county who are in office when this charter takes 

effect shall continue in office for the term for which they were elected, 
consistent with provisions of this charter and state law. 

 
E. The status of county employees shall not be affected by the taking effect 

of this charter.  Personnel matters relating to county employees shall 
continue to be governed by Minnesota Statutes Sections 383A.281 to 
383A.301 and Sections 197.455 to 197.48 as amended. 

 
F. All appointed department heads who are incumbents as of the effective 

date of this charter may be removed by the county manager only with the 
approval of the county board. 

 
Sec. 12.03 Special Laws Superseded 
 

A. The following special laws have been superseded by charter provisions: 
 

Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.04, relating to tax anticipation warrants, is 
superseded in its entirety by Charter Section 9.04. 

 
B. In Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.06, Subd. 2, the following language is 

superseded in its entirety by Charter Section 9.05: 
 

If the board of commissioners of Ramsey county decides to issue 
bonds for the relief of the poor, the board shall first submit the 

 - 28 - 



question of the issuance of the bonds to a referendum of the voters 
of the county at a  special election called for that purpose, or at a  
general election.  No bonds of this type may be issued unless a 
majority voting on the question at the election vote in favor thereof. 

 
C. Minn.  Stat. Sec. 383A.06, Subd. 3, relating  to the services of the St. 

Paul Corporation Counsel, is superseded in its entirety as unnecessary 
and inapplicable. 

 
D. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.07, Subd. 6, relating to sale or disposal of surplus 

tracts of park property, is superseded in its entirety by Charter Section 
2.02 K. 

 
E. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.07, Subd. 15, relating to a negative referendum for 

park resolutions is superseded in its entirety by Chapter 8 of the charter. 
 
F. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.07, Subd. 20 relating to fish hatcheries is 

superseded in its entirety as unnecessary and inapplicable. 
 
G. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.16, Subd. 4 (b) which places a $2,500 limit on 

county road construction projects performed for a municipality is 
superseded in its entirety. 

 
H. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.16, Subd. 5 relating to Lexington Avenue is 

superseded in its entirety. 
 
I. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.20, Subd. 1 relating to internal county 

reorganization is superseded by Charter Section 2.02 B. 
 
J. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.20, Subd. 6, 7, 8 and 9, all relating to surety bonds, 

are superseded by Charter Section 4.01 E. 
 
K. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.20, Subd. 10, relating to automobile allowances, is 

superseded to the extent it is inconsistent with Charter Section 2.01 D.4. 
 
L. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.20, Subd. 11 relating to office space is superseded 

in its entirety. 
 
M. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.23, Subd. 1 relating to the composition of the 

county board is superseded by Charter Section 2.0l A. 
 
N. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.24 which establishes the terms for county 

commissioners is superseded in its entirety by Charter Section 2.01 B. 
 
O. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.25 relating to compensation for county 

commissioners is superseded in its entirety by Charter Section 2.0l D. 
 
P. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A. 32, Subd. 1 is superseded by Charter Section 4.02 

A., in the event that Ramsey County chooses to have its own purchasing 
officer. 

 

 - 29 - 



 - 30 - 

Q. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.32, Subd. 3, relating to performance bonds, is 
superseded in its entirety by Charter Section 4.02 C. 

 
R. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.45, regarding the budget is superseded in its 

entirety by Charter Section 10.01. 
 
S. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.46, regarding the capital program, is superseded in 

its entirety by Charter Section 10.05. 
 
T. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.48, regarding appropriations and tax levy, is 

superseded in its entirety by Charter Section 10.02 B. 
 
U. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.49 regarding amendments after adoption is 

superseded in its entirety by charter section 10.04. 
 
V. Minn. Stat. Sec. 383A.50, Subds. 1 and 3 regarding administration of the 

budget are superseded in their entirety by Charter Section 10.03. 
 
Sec. 12.04 General Laws Superseded 
 

A. In Minn. Stat. Sec. 375.08, the following language regarding a vacancy in 
the positions of county attorney or sheriff is superseded by Charter 
Section 7.02: 

 
The person appointed shall serve the remainder for the term. 

 




































































































	Agenda
	August 5, 2024 Minutes
	2025 Supplemental Budget Presentation.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11

	Charter Commission Proposed Budget Letter
	Charter Commission Workplan Template
	On-boarding Materials
	Charter as amended on 11-2-10
	Sec. 1.01 General Grant of Powers
	Sec. 1.02 Construction of Powers
	Sec. 1.03 Exercise of Powers
	Sec. 1.04 Municipal Powers Reserved
	COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
	Sec. 2.01 Composition:  Terms, Qualifications and Compensation of Members
	Sec. 2.02 Powers of the County Board
	Sec. 2.03 Organization:  Officers
	Sec. 3.01 Appointment and Removal of the County Manager
	Sec. 3.02 Powers and Duties of the County Manager
	Sec. 4.01 General Provisions
	Sec. 4.02 Purchasing Officer
	Sec. 4.03 Personnel Officer
	Sec. 5.01 Ordinance:  Definitions and Vote Required
	Sec. 5.02 Ordinance Procedures
	Sec. 5.03 Emergency Ordinances
	Sec. 5.04 Resolutions
	Sec. 5.05 Resolution Procedure
	Sec. 5.06 Ordinances and Resolutions
	Sec. 5.07 Codification
	Sec. 6.01 County Coordination:  Powers and Duties of the County Board
	Sec. 6.02 County Plan
	Sec. 7.01 Nominations & Elections
	Sec. 7.02        Forfeiture of office
	Sec. 7.03 Vacancy in positions of County Attorney and Sheriff
	Sec. 8.01 Initiative, Referendum, and Recall
	Sec. 8.02 Petition
	Sec. 8.03 Determination of Sufficiency
	Sec. 8.04 Disposition of Insufficient Petitions
	Sec. 8.05 Initiative
	Sec. 8.06 Referendum
	Sec. 8.07 Recall
	Sec. 8.08 Repeal of Ordinances Submitted to Voters
	Sec. 8.09 Limit on Frequency of Repetition
	Sec. 9.01 Authority
	Sec. 9.02 Taxing Authority
	Sec. 9.03 Certification of Tax Levy
	Sec. 9.04 Tax Anticipation Obligations
	Sec. 9.05 Bonding
	Sec. 10.01 Budget
	Sec. 10.02 Budget Process
	Sec. 10.03 Administration of Budget
	Sec. 10.04 Amendments After Adoption
	Sec. 10.05 Capital Improvements Plan
	Sec. 11.01 Charter Provisions
	Sec. 11.02 Amendment of the Charter
	Sec. 11.03 Charter Commission
	Sec. 12.01 Effective Date
	Sec. 12.02 Continuity
	Sec. 12.03 Special Laws Superseded
	Sec. 12.04 General Laws Superseded




	NEW  Logo Charter Cover sheet 2019




